Public Document Pack

SPEAKERS PANEL (LIQUOR LICENSING)
Day:
Date:
Time:
Place:

Monday
13 January 2020
10.00 am
Tameside One, Market Square, Ashton-Under-Lyne, OL6
6BH

Item
No.
1.

AGENDA

Page
No

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
To receive an declarations of interest from Members of the Panel

2.

MINUTES

1-2

The Minutes of the meeting of the Speakers Panel (Liquor Licensing) held on 5
August 2019 to be signed by the Chair as a correct record.
3.

EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC
That under Section 11A of the Local Government Act 1972 (as amended) the
public be excluded for any part of the following items of business on the
grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined
in Paragraphs 1, 2 and 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act and in the
circumstances of the case, the public interest in maintaining the exemption
outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information, because disclosure
of the personal information contained in the reports would not be fair to any of
the representatives and therefore be in breach of Data Protection principles.
For each application to be considered it is expected that the Speakers Panel
(Licensing) will make its decision in private and all of the parties will be asked
to leave the room. The Legal Officer and the Clerk will remain with the
Licensing-Committee to give legal or procedural advice only.

4.

APPLICATION TO VARY A PREMISES LICENCE – ASTLEY NEWS, 194
ASTLEY STREET, DUKINFIELD, SK16 4QD
To consider the attached application to vary a premises licence.

5.

APPLICATION TO VARY A PREMISES LICENCE – THE WHITEHOUSE, 2
WATER STREET, STALYBRIDGE
To consider the attached application to vary a premises licence.

From: Democratic Services Unit – any further information may be obtained from the reporting
officer or from Louis Garrick, Senior Democratic Services Officer, to whom any apologies for
absence should be notified.

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 2
SPEAKERS PANEL (LIQUOR LICENSING)
5 August 2019
Present:

Councillors Sweeton (Chair), Bowden (Deputy Chair) and Wild

In Attendance:

Mike Robinson

Regulatory Services Manager
(Licensing)
Head of Legal Services
Greater Manchester Police

Aileen Johnson
PC Thorley
Apologies for Absence:
9

There were no apologies for absence

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest submitted by the Panel.
10

MINUTES

The Minutes of the previous meeting held on 21 March 2019 were approved as a correct record.
12

APPLICATION TO VARY A PREMISES LICENCE - MINERS ARMS, 147 MOSSLEY
ROAD, ASHTON-UNDER-LYNE, OL6 6NE

The Assistant Director of Operations and Neighbourhoods submitted a report requesting Members
to determine a request to vary an existing premises licence for the Miners Arms, 147 Mossley Road,
Ashton-Under-Lyne, OL6 6NE.
The Panel considered evidence from the designated premises supervisor, Admiral Taverns and a
local resident. The Panel considered the views of a local resident, issued raised included amplified
music, entertainment causing noise to residents and suitable signage to dissuade patrons from
disturbing neighbours.
All parties were afforded the opportunity to ask questions in relation to the statement. In response
to questions from Members of the Panel it was confirmed that a separate complaint had been
lodged with regards to noise disturbance and that there had been no previous issues with noise
levels emitting from the pub through the time they had lived in the adjoining property.
The Panel considered the views of the Designated Premises Supervisor and representatives of
Admiral Taverns. The Designated Premises Supervisor explained that entertainment events were
arranged with consultation of the Licensing Authority. The purpose of the extension to opening
hours would enable a variety of events. All parties were afforded the opportunity to ask questions in
relation to the statement. Members of the Panel asked questions relating to access to the rear of
the pub and the complaint that had been received in relation to the application.
Members of the Panel carefully considered the written report, representations and the questions and
answers during the hearing in addition to all of the information provided. The Panel approved that
the premises licence be amended with conditions.
RESOLVED
That with the application of the conditions outlined in the report the Panel approve the
premises licence for MINERS ARMS, 147 MOSSLEY ROAD, ASHTON-UNDER-LYNE, OL6 6NE
be amended.

Page 1

13

APPLICATION FOR REVIEW OF A PREMISES LICENCE - ANGEL HOTEL, 147
HYDE ROAD, DENTON, M43 3DW

The Assistant Director for Operations and Neighbourhoods submitted a report requesting that the
Panel determine a review of Angel Hotel, 147 Hyde Road, Denton, M43 3DW.
The Panel were informed that on the 13 June 2019, PC Thorley on behalf of the Chief Constable of
Greater Manchester Police, submitted an application to review the premises licence. The Licensing
Manager outlined the procedure and the steps which could be utilised by the Panel in determining
the application.
The Licensing Manager detailed incidents which had occurred at the Angel Hotel which were in
breach of the licensing objectives and conditions of the licence. It was reported that the premises
licence had been reviewed on the 14 December 2010 following issues relating to noise nuisance
which resulted in additional conditions being applied to the licence. The Panel were informed of
incidents of serious crime and disorder occurring at the premises. PC Thorley addressed the Panel
referring to a submitted written witness statement and provided concerns held by Greater
Manchester Police as to the ability of the designated premises supervisor and the premises license
holder to comply with the requirements of the Licensing Act 2003 to promote the licensing objectives
for the preventions of crim and disorder and public safety.
Following the address all parties were afforded the opportunity to ask questions in relation to the
statement. A representative of the Ei Group and Craft Union Pub asked questions in relation to the
statement and agreed to the proposed revised conditions that had arisen from the meeting.
Members of the Panel considered representation from a local resident who addressed the panel
highlighting problems which had been caused due to incidents at The Angel Hotel.
The Panel were addressed by a representative of the Ei Group and Craft Union Pub Company, it
was the intention of the Craft Union Pub Company to attract a deferent clientele, the conditioning of
permanent use of polycarbonates would be detrimental to their ability to do so. Following the
address all parties were afforded the opportunity to ask questions in relation to their statement.
Clarification was sought by the Regulatory Services Manager and a local resident supported the
view that polycarbonates should be used at all times.
All partiers were invited to provide a brief statement in summary, Members of the Panel carefully
considered the written report, representations and the questions and answers during the hearing in
addition to all of the information provided. The Panel determined that it would be appropriate to
modify the licence with the conditions outlined in the report that they considered to be necessary
and proportionate to promote the Licensing Objectives.
RESOLVED
That with the application of the conditions outlined in the report the Panel approve the
premises license for ANGEL HOTEL, 147 HYDE ROAD, DENTON, M43 3DW be amended.

Page 2

Agenda Item 4
Report to:

Speakers Panel (Liquor Licensing)

Date:

13 January 2020

Reporting Officer:

Emma
Varnam
Neighbourhoods

Subject:

APPLICATION TO VARY A PREMISES LICENCE – ASTLEY
NEWS, 194 ASTLEY STREET, DUKINFIELD, SK16 4QD

Report Summary:

Members are requested to determine the application

Recommendations:

Having regard to the application and the relevant representations,
Members are invited to take such steps (if any) as it considers
appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives. The steps
available are:

–

Assistant

Director,

Operations

&

a) modify the conditions of the licence (conditions are deemed
to be modified if any are altered, omitted or any new
condition added); or,
b) reject the whole or part of the application
If neither of these steps are taken, the application must be granted
Corporate Plan:

Living Well – Improve satisfaction with local community

Policy Implications:

Members are provided with policy guidelines to assist in the
decision making process.

Financial Implications:
(Authorised by the
statutory Section 151
Officer & Chief Finance
Officer)

There are limited financial implications for the Council, as detailed
in the report, however, any legal challenge to a policy decision
may potentially incur costs.

Legal Implications:
(Authorised by the
Borough Solicitor)

Members should determine the application in accordance with
Section 35 of the Licensing Act 2003 and Chapter 9 of the
Statutory Guidance issued under section 182.

Risk Management:

Failure to give full consideration to the determination of licensing
issues has the potential to impact on public safety.

Access to Information:

The author of the report is Mike Robinson – Regulatory Services
Manager (Licensing)

Background Information:

The background papers relating to this report can be inspected by
contacting Mike Robinson
Telephone: 0161 342 4122
e-mail: mike.robinson@tameside.gov.uk

Page 3

1.

INTRODUCTION

1.1

Section 34 of the Licensing Act 2003 outlines the procedure whereby an application can be
made to the Licensing Authority to vary an existing premises licence.

1.2

Section 35(3) of the Licensing Act 2003 states that where relevant representations are
made in respect of such an application, the authority must:
(a)
hold a hearing to consider them, unless the authority, the applicant and each person
who has made such representations agree that a hearing is unnecessary, and
(b)
having regard to the representations, take such steps as mentioned in subsection
(4) (if any) as it considers appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives.

1.3

The steps mentioned in subsection (4) are:
(a)to modify the conditions of the licence;
(b)to reject the whole or part of the application;
and for this purpose the conditions of the licence are modified if any of them is altered or
omitted or any new condition is added.

2.

REPORT

2.1

Astley News has held a premise licence with Tameside Council since 8 December 2008. A
copy of the current premises licence can be found at Appendix 1.

2.2

On 31 October 2019, the Licensing Department received an application to vary the existing
premise licence at Astley News, 194 Astley Street, Dukinfield. The application is seeking to
extend the terminal hour for the sale of alcohol and opening hours for the premises to
01:00am;

Sale of alcohol
Opening hours

Current
Monday-Saturday 22:00
Sunday 21:30
Monday-Saturday 22:00
Sunday 21:30

Proposed
Monday-Sunday 01:00
Monday-Sunday 01:00

2.3

The application was submitted by Mr Hamza Ali who is the current Premises Licence
Holder and Designated Premises Supervisor (DPS). Mr Ali has been the DPS since 9
January 2018 and has held the premises licence since 13 March 2019. A copy of variation
application is attached at Appendix 2.

2.4

The premises is located within a row of terraced residential properties and is adjacent to a
licensed public house, The Chapel House, 192 Astley Street, Dukinfield.

2.5

A map of the local area with the shop marked is attached at Appendix 3.

2.6

In accordance with the legislation a number of representations have been received by the
Licensing Authority, the representations are relevant and remain unresolved.

Page 4

3.

REPRESENTATIONS AND EVIDENCE SUBMITTED

3.1

A local resident has made a representation, this is attached at Appendix 4.

3.2

On behalf of the Licensing Authority, Regulatory Compliance Officer Brad Byrne has made
representation. This is attached at Appendix 5.

3.3

PC Martin Thorley acting on behalf of Greater Manchester Police has made representation.
This is attached at Appendix 6.

3.4

James Mallion on behalf of TMBC Public Health has made representation. This is attached
at Appendix 7.

3.5

Councillors John Taylor, Jackie Lane and Brian Wild in their capacity as an interested party
have also made representation. This is attached at Appendix 8.

4.

CONCLUSION AND OPTIONS FOR THE PANEL

4.1

Panel are requested to consider the evidence and decide what (if any) steps to take as it
considers appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives. The options available to
the Panel are;
a) modify the conditions of the licence (conditions are deemed to be modified if any are
altered, omitted or any new condition added); or,
b) reject the whole or part of the application
If neither of these steps are taken, the application must be granted.

5.

RECOMMENDATIONS

5.1

As set out at the front of the report.

Page 5

This page is intentionally left blank

APPENDIX 1

Premises Licence

PL0727

Licensing Act 2003
THIS LICENCE IS ISSUED BY

Tameside MBC
Licensing Department
Tame Street Depot
Tame Street
Stalybridge
Tameside
SK15 1ST
web: www.tameside.gov.uk
Tel: 0161 342 4262
Part 1 – Premises Details
POSTAL ADDRESS OF PREMISES, OR IF NONE, ORDNANCE SURVEY MAP REFERENCE OR DESCRIPTION

PREMISES

Astley News

TELEPHONE:

ADDRESS

194 Astley Street, Dukinfield, Cheshire, SK16 4QD

WHERE THE LICENCE IS TIME LIMITED THE DATES:
Not applicable
LICENSABLE ACTIVITIES AUTHORISED BY THE LICENCE:
SOA

- Sale by Retail of Alcohol for consumption OFF the premises;

THE TIMES THE LICENCE AUTHORISES THE CARRYING OUT OF LICENSABLE ACTIVITIES:
Activity (and Area if applicable)

Sale by Retail of Alcohol ON & OFF
Sale by Retail of Alcohol ON & OFF
Sale by Retail of Alcohol ON & OFF

Description

Times

Monday-Friday
Saturday
Sunday

08:00 - 22:00
09:30 - 22:00
10:00 - 21:30

THE OPENING HOURS OF THE PREMISES:
Description

Monday-Friday
Saturday
Sunday

Times

08:00
09:30
10:00

22:00
22:00
21:30

Where the licence authorises supplies of alcohol whether these are on and /or off supplies:
OPENING HOURS OF THE PREMISES:

Page 7

Premises Licence

PL0727

Licensing Act 2003

Name, (registered) address, telephone number and email (where relevant) of holder of premises
licence:
Mr Hamza Ali
279 Kings Road, Chorlton, Manchester, ,

Tel:
Email: hamza96.@hotmail.com

Registered number of holder, for example company number, charity number (where applicable)
Mr Hamza Ali
279 Kings Road, Chorlton, Manchester, ,

Business Reg No:

Name address and telephone number of designated premises supervisor where the premises licence
authorises the supply of alcohol:
Mr Hamza Ali
279 Kings Road, Chorlton-cum-Hardy, Manchester, M21 0XG,

Tel:

Personal licence number and issuing authority of personal licence held by designated premises
supervisor (where the premises authorises for the supply of alcohol):
Licence Number: 192072
Licensing Authority Issued by: Manchester
SIGNED ON BEHALF OF THE ISSUING LICENCE AUTHORITY

Sharon Smith, Head of Public Protection
Operations & Neighbourhoods

Page 8

ANNEXES

Annex 1 – Mandatory conditions
1

ANNEX 1 - MANDATORY CONDITIONS
Mandatory Conditions under the Licensing Act 2003:
(1) No supply of alcohol may be made under the premises licence:
(a)at a time when there is no designated premises supervisor in respect of the premises , or
(b) at a time when the designated premises supervisor does not hold a
personal licence or his personal licence is suspended

(2)Every supply of alcohol under the premises licence must be made or authorised by a person who holds a
personal licence.
The following conditions came into force on 6th April 2010
(1) The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder shall ensure that an age verification policy
applies to the premises in relation to the sale or supply of alcohol.
(2) The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person to be under 18 years of age (or
such older age as may be specified in the policy) to produce on request, before being served alcohol, identification
bearing their photograph, date of birth and a holographic mark.

Annex 2 – Conditions consistent with the Operating Schedule
a)

General – all four licensing objectives (b, c, d, e):

b)

The prevention of crime and disorder:
Installation of CCTV
Installation of Security Alarm with Redcare
Move people off the front of premises

c) Public safety
Make area clean and tiday
Move gangs on from store

d)

The prevention of public nuisance:
Move them on, dont let kids loiter around shop.

e)

The protection of children from harm;
Challenge 21 policy will be in operation.

Annex 3 – Conditions attached after a hearing by the licensing authority
1

ANNEX 3 - CONDITIONS ATTACHED AFTER A HEARING BY THE LICENSING AUTHORITY
None applicable.

ANNEX 4 – AUTHORISED PLANS
As attached

Page 9

Premises Licence Summary

PL0727

Licensing Act 2003
THIS LICENCE IS ISSUED BY

Tameside MBC
Licensing Department
Tame Street Depot
Tame Street
Stalybridge
Tameside
SK15 1ST
web: www.tameside.gov.uk
Tel: 0161 342 4262
Part 1 – Premises Details
POSTAL ADDRESS OF PREMISES, OR IF NONE, ORDNANCE SURVEY MAP REFERENCE OR DESCRIPTION

PREMISES

Astley News

TELEPHONE:

ADDRESS

194 Astley Street, Dukinfield, Cheshire, SK16 4QD

WHERE THE LICENCE IS TIME LIMITED THE DATES:
Not applicable

LICENSABLE ACTIVITIES AUTHORISED BY THE LICENCE:
SOA

- Sale by Retail of Alcohol for consumption ON and OFF the premises;

THE TIMES THE LICENCE AUTHORISES THE CARRYING OUT OF LICENSABLE ACTIVITIES:
Activity (and Area if applicable)

Sale by Retail of Alcohol ON & OFF
Sale by Retail of Alcohol ON & OFF
Sale by Retail of Alcohol ON & OFF

Description

Times

Monday-Friday
Saturday
Sunday

08:00 - 22:00
09:30 - 22:00
10:00 - 21:30

Non-Standard Timings

THE OPENING HOURS OF THE PREMISES:
Description

Monday-Friday
Saturday
Sunday

Times

08:00
09:30
10:00

22:00
22:00
21:30

Where the licence authorises supplies of alcohol whether these are on and /or off supplies:

Name, (registered) address, telephone number and email (where relevant) of holder of premises licence:
Mr Hamza Ali
279 Kings Road, Chorlton, Manchester, ,

Tel:
Email: hamza96.@hotmail.com

Registered number of holder, for example company number, charity number (where applicable) :
Mr Hamza Ali
279 Kings Road, Chorlton, Manchester, ,

Business Reg No:

Page 10

Name of designated premises supervisor where the premises licence authorises the supply of alcohol:
Mr Hamza Ali
279 Kings Road, Chorlton-cum-Hardy, Manchester, M21 0XG,

Tel:

State whether access to the premises by children is restricted or prohibited:
Access to the premises by children is prohibited

SIGNED ON BEHALF OF THE ISSUING LICENCE AUTHORITY

Sharon Smith, Head of Public Protection
Operations & Neighbourhoods

Page 11

This page is intentionally left blank

APPENDIX 2

Page 13

Page 14

Page 15

Page 16

Page 17

Page 18

Page 19

Page 20

APPENDIX 3

Page 21

This page is intentionally left blank

APPENDIX
APPENDIX
5 4

Page 23

This page is intentionally left blank

APPENDIX 5
LICENSING ACT 2003 – AS AMENDED
Representation Re Application for a Variation of a Premises Licence
From:
To:
Date:
Premises:
Date of Application:

The Licensing Section, Tameside Metropolitan Borough Council
The Licensing Section, Tameside Metropolitan Borough Council
27 November 2019
Astley News, 194 Astley Street, Dukinfield, SK16 4QD
31 October 2019

The Licensing Authority, in its capacity as a ‘Responsible Authority’ under the provisions of the
Licensing Act 2003, hereby give notice of our objection to the grant of a premises licence in respect
of the above premises.
The reason(s) for the objection are as follows:
Firstly the Licensing Authority has great concerns over the time in which this premise wishes to sell
alcohol to members of the public. There are several other Off Licenses in the nearby area which do
not sell alcohol past 11pm, two of which are located on the same road.
On the application submitted, very little detail has been provided in the operating schedule to assure
the Licensing Authority on how the applicant intends to promote the four Licensing objectives.
Astley News is located directly next door to the Chapel House Public House on Astley Street,
Dukinfield. With a time of 1am for the sale of alcohol, this poses significant risk to patrons who have
already been drinking in the Chapel House pub as they would be able to purchase more alcohol for
consumption at home.
The Licensing Authority has also received two representations to this application from members of
the public who mirror the concerns regarding the late time this premise wishes to sell alcohol.
It is of the opinion of the Licensing Authority that this application should be refused.

Consequently, we recommend that the application should only be granted subject to the following
being Conditions attached to the grant of the Licence:

A copy of this representation has been sent to the applicant.

Signed:

B Byrne

Name:
Regulatory Compliance Officer

Page 25

This page is intentionally left blank

APPENDIX
7 6
APPENDIX
RESTRICTED (when complete)

MG11

Page 1 of 2

WITNESS STATEMENT
Criminal Procedure Rules r 27.2; Criminal Justice Act 1967, s.9: Magistrates’ Courts Act 1980, s.5B

URN
Statement of: Martin Richard Thorley
Age if under 18:

(if over 18 insert ‘over 18’) Occupation: Police Officer

This statement (consisting of two pages each signed by me) is true to the best of my knowledge and belief and I make it
knowing that, if it is tendered in evidence, I shall be liable to prosecution if I have wilfully stated anything in it, which I
know to be false, or do not believe to be true.
th

Signature:

Date: 28 November 2019

Check box if witness evidence is visually recorded

(supply witness details on last page)

I am Police Constable 14627 Martin Thorley of the Greater Manchester Police stationed at Ashton Police
Station. My current role is that of Licensing Officer, Divisional Partnership Team for the Tameside District.
I have delegation of authority on behalf of the Chief Officer of Police for all applications made in respect of the
Licencing Act 2003.
I am aware that this statement will be used as part of an application for a representation to vary a premises
licence at 194 Astley Street, Dukinfield, Tameside.
I as Licensing Officer have representations about the time in which this premise wishes to sell alcohol to
members of the public. There are several other Off Licenses in the nearby area which do not sell alcohol past
11pm, two of which are located on Astley Street, Dukinfield.
I have reviewed the application and the operating schedule and I do not see anything which would convince
me that the four Licensing objectives would be demonstrated. As such I submit representation as follows:The prevention of crime and disorder.

I would anticipate that there would be an increase in crime and disorder which could lead to further demands
being placed onto the Greater Manchester Police at a time in the early hours when demand on the Police
Service is already at high levels. I believe that there would be an increase in complaints and opposition from
local residents.
The prevention of public nuisance.

Given that area is predominately housing I would have concerns with the additional noise complaint and antisocial behaviour arising from customers leaving as late as 0100hrs as Astley News is located directly next
door to the Chapel House Public House on Astley Street, Dukinfield. With the proposed licensing times I
believe that the sale of alcohol at these times could pose significant risk to patrons who have already been
drinking in the Chapel House pub as they and others would be able to purchase and consume more alcohol.

It is the opinion of the Greater Manchester Police that this application should be refused.

Signature:…………………………………………….
2010/11

Signature witnessed by: .....................................................

Page
27complete)
RESTRICTED
(when

RESTRICTED (when complete)

MG11
Page 2 of 2

Witness contact details

URN

Home address:

Postcode:

Home telephone no.:

Work telephone no:

Mobile no: 07393145364

E-mail address:

Preferred means of contact:

(Specify details for vulnerable/intimidated victims and witnesses only):

Gender: Male

Date and place of birth:

Former name:

,
Ethnicity code 16+1 1

DATES OF WITNESS NON-AVAILABILITY:

Witness care
a) Is the witness willing and likely to attend court? If ‘No’, include reason(s) on form MG6.
b) What can be done to ensure attendance?

Yes

No

c) Does the witness require Special Measures Assessment as a vulnerable or intimidated
witness? Youth under 18; witness with mental disorder, learning or physical disability; or witness in fear of giving
evidence or witness is the complainant in a sexual offence case) If ‘Yes’ submit MG2 with file in
anticipated not guilty, contested or indictable only cases.

Yes

No

d) Does the witness have any particular needs?

Yes

No

If ‘Yes’ what are they? (Disability, healthcare, childcare, transport, language difficulties, visually impaired, restricted
mobility or other concerns?)

Witness consent (for witness completion)
a) The Victim Personal Statement scheme (victims only) has been explained to me:

Yes

No

b) I have been given the Victim Personal Statement leaflet:

Yes

No

c) I have been given the leaflet ‘Giving a witness statement to the police

Yes

No

Yes

No

N/A

Yes

No

N/A

Yes

No

N/A

Yes

No

N/A

Yes

No

N/A

d) I consent to police having access to my medical record(s) in relation to this matter:
(obtained in accordance with local practice)
e) I consent to my medical record in relation to this matter being disclosed to the defence:
f) I consent to the statement being disclosed for the purposes of civil or other proceedings if
applicable: e.g. child care proceedings, CICA.
g) Child witness cases only. I have had the provision regarding reporting restrictions

Explained to me.
I would like CPS to apply for reporting restrictions on my behalf

I understand that the information recorded above will be passed on to the Witness Service, which offers help and
support to witnesses pre-trail and at court;
Signature of witness: ............................................................................................. PRINT NAME:

..............................

Signature of parent/guardian/appropriate adult: ................................................... PRINT NAME:

..............................

Address and telephone number if different from above:

.............................................................................................

Statement taken by (print name): Martin Thorley
Time and place statement taken:

2010/11

Page
28 complete)
RESTRICTED
(when

Station:

APPENDIX 7
Dear Mike,
I, James Mallion on behalf of Public Health in their capacity as a Responsible Authority under the
Licensing Act 2003 make representation in relation to the premises licence variation application at
194 Astley Street, Dukinfield submitted the Licensing Authority on 31 October 2019
In relation to the above application, I have enclosed some information and comments below.
See below a screenshot of the data for this area (SK16 4QD) which indicates the level of existing
alcohol-related harm. The overall score at the bottom is made up of the 6 individual indicators,
which gives an overall picture of alcohol-related harm in the LSOA. This tells us that this area has the
31st highest degree of existing alcohol-related harm in the borough (out of 141 LSOAs), which falls
into the top quartile. Of particular note in the individual indicators, is the rank for Weekend A&E
attendances (from midnight to 5am), for which this area is 13th highest in the borough (out of 141
LSOAs). That means they already have high numbers of people from this area attending A&E
overnight at the weekend, and evidence shows a significant proportion of these will be alcoholrelated.
Based on this information, I think extending the opening hours and supply of alcohol from this
premises, particularly given the times of night involved and the proximity to existing licensed
premises poses a risk to the first three licensing objectives (prevention of crime and disorder; public
safety; and prevention of public nuisance). The most direct link I would like to identify is the high
level of weekend night-time A&E attendances in this area, and the times at which this variation is
proposing to extend the sale of alcohol (22:00-01:00 Mon-Sat; and 21:30-01:00 Sun), which may
pose risks to public safety and increase the risk of public nuisance.

Page 29

This page is intentionally left blank

APPENDIX
8
APPENDIX
9

DEMOCRATIC SERVICES
Councillor John Taylor
Councillor Jacqueline Lane
Councillor Brian Wild
Dukinfield Ward
By Email:

PO BOX 317
Ashton under Lyne, OL6 0GS

publicprotection-es@tameside.gov.uk

www.tameside.gov.uk
email: john.talyor@tameside.gov.uk
Tel: 0161 342 5500
Date: 28 November 2019

Dear Licensing,
Premises: Astley News, 194 Astley Street, Dukinfield, SK16 4QD
Date of Application: 31 October 2019
Cllrs. J Taylor, J Lane and B Wild (Elected Members for Dukinfield) in their capacity as an
‘Interested Party’ under the provisions of the Licensing Act 2003, hereby give notice to the
Licensing Section of our objection to the grant of a premises licence in respect of the above
premises.
The reason(s) for the objection are as follows:
We believe granting a premises licence variation application will undermine the Licensing
Objectives, in particular the Prevention of Public Nuisance and Protection of Public Safety.
The proposed terminal hour (1am) for the sale of alcohol for consumption off the premises is
unacceptable and will cause a nuisance to the local community. The premises is located in row of
terraced properties and next door to the Chapel House which is a public house and there is a
potential for people congregating outside the shop causing further disturbance to the residents into
the early morning.
The proposal to serve alcohol through a hatch in the door, gives rise to concern that the premises
will be operating as a ‘drive-through’ off-licence, with cars pulling up on the street and causing a
noise nuisance.
Further, approximately 50 meters away from the premises there is sheltered accommodation,
Kenyon House and we feel that this premises will adversely affect the residents living here as most
of the residents are elderly.
There are no conditions which could be attached to the premises licence which could satisfy us, if
the application is granted, that the Licensing objectives would be promoted
Yours sincerely,
Councillor John Taylor
For Dukinfield Ward Councillors

Page 31

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 5
Report to:

Speakers Panel (Liquor Licensing)

Date:

Monday, 13 January 2020

Reporting Officer:

Emma
Varnam
Neighbourhoods

Subject:

APPLICATION TO VARY A PREMISES LICENCE – THE
WHITEHOUSE, 2 WATER STREET, STALYBRIDGE

Report Summary:

Members are requested to determine the application

Recommendations:

Having regard to the application and the relevant representations,
Members are invited to take such steps (if any) as it considers
appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives. The steps
available are:

–

Assistant

Director,

Operations

&

a)
modify the conditions of the licence (conditions are deemed
to be modified if any are altered, omitted or any new condition
added); or,
b)

reject the whole or part of the application

If neither of these steps are taken, the application must be granted
Corporate Plan:

Living Well – Improve satisfaction with local community

Policy Implications:

Members are provided with policy guidelines to assist in the
decision making process.

Financial Implications:
(Authorised by the
statutory Section 151
Officer & Chief Finance
Officer)

There are limited financial implications for the Council, as detailed
in the report, however, any legal challenge to a policy decision
may potentially incur costs.

Legal Implications:
(Authorised by the
Borough Solicitor)

Members should determine the application in accordance with
section 35 of the Licensing Act 2003 and Chapter 9 of the
Statutory Guidance issued under section 182 of the Act.

Risk Management:

Failure to give full consideration to the determination of licensing
issues has the potential to impact on public safety.

Access to Information:

The author of the report is Mike Robinson – Regulatory Services
Manager (Licensing)

Background Information:

The background papers relating to this report can be inspected by
contacting Mike Robinson
Telephone: 0161 342 4122
e-mail: mike.robinson@tameside.gov.uk

Page 33

1.

INTRODUCTION

1.1

Section 34 of the Licensing Act 2003 outlines the procedure whereby an application can be
made to the Licensing Authority to vary an existing premises licence.

1.2

Section 35(3) of the Licensing Act 2003 states that where relevant representations are
made in respect of such an application, the authority must:
(a)
hold a hearing to consider them, unless the authority, the applicant and each person
who has made such representations agree that a hearing is unnecessary, and
(b)
having regard to the representations, take such steps as mentioned in subsection
(4) (if any) as it considers appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives.

1.3

The steps mentioned in subsection (4) are:
(a) to modify the conditions of the licence;
(b) to reject the whole or part of the application;
and for this purpose the conditions of the licence are modified if any of them is altered or
omitted or any new condition is added.

2.

REPORT

2.1

The White House, 2 Water Street, Stalybridge has held a premises licence since the
inception of the Licensing Act 2003. A copy of the current premises licence is attached at
Appendix 1.

2.2

The current premises licence holders are Hyde’s Brewery and the current Designated
Premises Supervisor is Mrs Gillian Armstrong.

2.3

On 31 October 2019, the Licensing Authority received an application to vary the premises
licence. The proposed variations include the addition of the beer garden to the licensable
area and the addition of an extra “snug” within the internal space. A copy of this application
along with the proposed plan is attached at Appendix 2.

2.4

The White House been the subject of noise nuisance complaints has a history of
complaints the complaints relate to loud amplified music being played into the outside
drinking area at the rear of the premise. Between May 2018 and June 2019, the Council
received 17 separate complaints alleging noise nuisance from the premises.

2.5

Following the influx of complaints, a meeting was held in July 2019 at the Licensing Office
between the Licensing Manager Mike Robinson, Regulatory Compliance Officer Brad Byrne
and the Production and Distribution Director at Hyde’s Brewery, Paul Jefferies. During the
meeting, the complaints regarding excessive noise were discussed. A plan to resolve the
complaints was agreed and Hyde’s were to submit a minor variation application to impose a
number of agreed conditions, however the application was never received by the Authority.

2.6

On 15 November 2019, during the consultation period for the recent application a serious
incident occurred at the White House involving a customer of the pub being struck over the
head with a glass bottle in the outside drinking area.

2.7

Several visits were made by officers from the Council and Greater Manchester Police. The
incident could not be viewed due to the CCTV camera in the beer garden not working

Page 34

3.

REPRESENTATIONS AND EVIDENCE SUBMITTED

3.1

Representations from TMBC Licensing and Greater Manchester Police have been
received.

3.2

PC Martin Thorley acting on behalf of Greater Manchester Police has made representation.
This is attached along with further evidence at Appendix 3.

3.3

TMBC Regulatory Compliance Officer, Brad Byrne has submitted a representation on
behalf of TMBC Licensing. This is attached at Appendix 4.

4.

CONCLUSION AND OPTIONS FOR THE PANEL

4.1

Panel are requested to consider the evidence and decide what (if any) steps to take as it
considers appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives. The options available to
the Panel are;
a) modify the conditions of the licence (conditions are deemed to be modified if any are
altered, omitted or any new condition added); or,
b) reject the whole or part of the application
If neither of these steps are taken, the application must be granted.

5.

RECOMMENDATIONS

5.1

As set out at the front of the report.

Page 35

This page is intentionally left blank

APPENDIX 1

Premises Licence

PL0312

Licensing Act 2003
THIS LICENCE IS ISSUED BY

Tameside MBC
Licensing Department
Tame Street Depot
Tame Street
Stalybridge
Tameside
SK15 1ST
web: www.tameside.gov.uk
Tel: 0161 342 4262
Part 1 – Premises Details
POSTAL ADDRESS OF PREMISES, OR IF NONE, ORDNANCE SURVEY MAP REFERENCE OR DESCRIPTION

PREMISES

White House

TELEPHONE: 0161 226 1317

ADDRESS

1 Water Street, Stalybridge, Cheshire, SK15 2AG

WHERE THE LICENCE IS TIME LIMITED THE DATES:
Not applicable
LICENSABLE ACTIVITIES AUTHORISED BY THE LICENCE:
E
F
G
I
J

-

Performance Of Live Music;
Playing Of Recorded Music;
Performance Of Dance;
Provision of late night refreshment;
Sale by retail of alcohol;

THE TIMES THE LICENCE AUTHORISES THE CARRYING OUT OF LICENSABLE ACTIVITIES:
Activity (and Area if applicable)
Performance Of Dance
Performance Of Dance
Performance Of Dance
Performance Of Dance
Performance Of Live Music
Performance Of Live Music
Performance Of Live Music
Performance Of Live Music
Provision of late night refreshment
Playing Of Recorded Music
Playing Of Recorded Music
Playing Of Recorded Music
Playing Of Recorded Music
Sale by retail of alcohol
Sale by retail of alcohol
Sale by retail of alcohol
Sale by retail of alcohol
Sale by retail of alcohol
Sale by retail of alcohol
Non-Standard Timings

Description

Times

Friday - Saturday
Monday - Thursday
New Years Eve
Sunday
Friday - Saturday
Monday - Thursday
New Years Eve
Sunday
Monday - Saturday
Friday - Saturday
Monday - Thursday
New Years Eve
Sunday
Boxing Day
Friday - Saturday
Monday - Thursday
New Years Eve
Sunday
Christmas Eve

Page 37

20:00
20:00
20:00
12:00
20:00
20:00
20:00
12:00
23:00
20:00
20:00
20:00
12:00
11:00
11:00
11:00
12:00
11:00

- 02:00
- 00:00
- 02:30
- 00:00
- 02:00
- 00:00
- 02:30
- 00:00
- 23:30
- 02:00
- 00:00
- 02:30
- 00:00
- 02:00
- 02:00
- 00:00
- 00:00
- 02:00

THE OPENING HOURS OF THE PREMISES:
Description

Boxing Day
Friday-Saturday
Monday-Thursday
New Years Eve
Sunday
Christmas Eve

Times

11:00
11:00
11:00

02:30
02:30
01:00

12:00
11:00

01:00
02:30

Where the licence authorises supplies of alcohol whether these are on and /or off supplies:
Alcohol is supplied for consumption both ON and OFF the Premises OPENING HOURS OF THE PREMISES:

Page 38

Premises Licence

PL0312

Licensing Act 2003

Name, (registered) address, telephone number and email (where relevant) of holder of premises
licence:
Hydes Brewery Ltd
The Beer Studio, 30 Kansas Avenue, Salford, M50 2GL,

Tel: 0161 226 1317
Email:

Registered number of holder, for example company number, charity number (where applicable)
Hydes Brewery Ltd
The Beer Studio, 30 Kansas Avenue, Salford, M50 2GL,

Business Reg No:

Name address and telephone number of designated premises supervisor where the premises licence
authorises the supply of alcohol:
Mrs Gillian Ann Armstrong
The Whitehouse, 1 Water Street, Stalybridge, Cheshire, SK15 2AG

Tel: 0161 338 8277

Personal licence number and issuing authority of personal licence held by designated premises
supervisor (where the premises authorises for the supply of alcohol):
Licence Number: PA2184
Licensing Authority Issued by: Tameside
SIGNED ON BEHALF OF THE ISSUING LICENCE AUTHORITY

Sharon Smith, Head of Public Protection
Operations & Neighbourhoods

Page 39

ANNEXES

Annex 1 – Mandatory conditions
Embedded Conditions - On Licences
As an embedded condition the licence holder may permit the premises to be open for the sale of late night refreshment
(non-alcoholic)until 11:30pm on Weekdays and Saturdays. And until 11:00pm on Sundays
As an embedded condition the premises is permitted to provide only recorded music or the reproduction by wireless
(including television) broadcasts within the times stated for the sale of alcohol on the premises.Mandatory Conditions
under the Licensing Act 2003:
(1) No supply of alcohol may be made under the premises licence:
(a) at a time when there is no designated premises supervisor in respect of the premises , or
(b) at a time when the designated premises supervisor does not hold a personal licence or his personal licence is
suspended
(2)Every supply of alcohol under the premises licence must be made or authorised by a person who holds a personal
licence.
1.(1) The responsible person shall take all reasonable steps to ensure that staff on relevant premises do not carry out,
arrange or participate in any irresponsible promotions in relation to the premises.
(2) In this paragraph, an irresponsible promotion means any one or more of the following activities, or substantially similar
activities, carried on for the purpose of encouraging the sale or supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises in a
manner which carries a significant risk of leading or contributing to crime and disorder, prejudice to public safety, public
nuisance, or harm to children(a) games or other activities which require or encourage, or are designed to require or encourage, individuals to(i) drink a quantity of alcohol within a time limit (other than to drink alcohol sold or supplied on the premises before the
cessation of the period in which the responsible person is authorised to sell or supply alcohol), or
(ii) drink as much alcohol as possible (whether within a time limit or otherwise);
(b) provision of unlimited or unspecified quantities of alcohol free or for a fixed or discounted fee to the public or to a
group defined by a particular characteristic (other than any promotion or discount available to an individual in respect of
alcohol for consumption at a table meal, as defined in section 159 of the Act);
(c)provision of free or discounted alcohol or any other thing as a prize to encourage or reward the purchase and
consumption of alcohol over a period of 24 hours or less;
(d) provision of free or discounted alcohol in relation to the viewing on the premises of a sporting event, where that
provision is dependent on(i) the outcome of a race, competition or other event or process, or
(ii) the likelihood of anything occurring or not occurring;
(e) selling or supplying alcohol in association with promotional posters or flyers on, or in the vicinity of, the premises which
can reasonably be considered to condone, encourage or glamorise anti-social behaviour or to refer to the effects of
drunkenness in any favourable manner.
2.The responsible person shall ensure that no alcohol is dispensed directly by one person into the mouth of another
(other than where that other person is unable to drink without assistance by reason of a disability).
3.The responsible person shall ensure that free tap water is provided on request to customers where it is reasonably
available.
4.(1) The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder shall ensure that an age verification policy applies to
the premises in relation to the sale or supply of alcohol.
(2) The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person to be under 18 years of age (or such older
age as may be specified in the policy) to produce on request, before being served alcohol, identification bearing their
photograph, date of birth and a holographic mark.
The responsible person shall ensure that(a)where any of the following alcoholic drinks is sold or supplied for consumption on the premises (other than alcoholic
drinks sold or supplied having been made up in advance ready for sale or supply in a securely closed container) it is
available to customers in the following measures(i)beer or cider: ½ pint;
(ii)gin, rum, vodka or whisky: 25 ml or 35 ml; and
(iii)still wine in a glass: 125 ml; and
(b) customers are made aware of the availability of these measures.
(1) The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder shall ensure that an age verification policy applies to
the premises in relation to the sale or supply of alcohol.

Page 40

(2) The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person to be under 18 years of age (or such older

age as may be specified in the policy) to produce on request, before being served alcohol, identification bearing their
photograph, date of birth and a holographic mark.

Annex 2 – Conditions consistent with the Operating Schedule

a) General – all four licensing objectives (b, c, d, e):
Door security from 9.00pm until closure Friday and Saturday (subject to service of alcohol after midnight).

b)The prevention of crime and disorder:
who appears to be under the age of 18 and who is attempting to purchase alcohol must be required to produce "proof
of age", complying with the PASS accreditation system before such sale is made. No irresponsible sales promotions of
alcoholic beverages shall be offered to customers.
c) Public safety
When disabled people are present, adequate arrangements will be made to enable their safe evacuation in the event of
an emergency. All escape routes and exits will be kept unobstructed, in good order with non slippery and even surfaces,
free of trip hazards and clearly identified. All exit doors should be maintained so as to be capable of being opened easily.
All fire doors will be maintained effectively, self closing and shall not be held open other than by approved devices. An
adequate and appropriate supply of first aid equipment and materials is to be made available on the premises.
d)The prevention of public nuisance:
Noise or vibration will not emanate from the premises so as to cause a nuisance to nearby properties. Prominent, clear
and legible notices are to be displayed at all exits requesting the public to respect the needs of local residents and to
leave the premises and the area quietly.
e)The protection of children from harm;
who appears to be under the age of 18 and who is attempting to buy alcohol must be required to produce "proof-of age",
complying with the PASS accreditation system before such sale is made.

Annex 3 – Conditions attached after a hearing by the licensing authority
Panel Decision 11/1/2010 Following Application for a Variation
The Panel noted that the representations by Environmental Health could be overcome by an effective noise limiting
device being installed; the Panel were advised that a limiting device had partly been installed.
The Panel therefore granted the variation to the premises licence in respect of the White House as requested with the
addition of a condition relating to the noise limiting device:1.No regulated entertainment shall take place after 1 February 2010 unless a noise limiting set and operating in
accordance with these conditions is in operation.
2.All sound equipment used by the DJ must draw electrical power only from sockets which are subject to being cut out by

Page 41

the noise limiter.
3.The noise limiting system is to be set and maintained at a level to be agreed with Tameside MBC.
4.Once the noise limiting device has been set in accordance with 3 above
a)Its settings shall not be altered without the written permission of the Local Authority
b)A security tag shall be fitted to the noise limiting device so that its settings cannot be altered without removing the tag.
5.All external doors and windows must be kept closed, other than for egress and access, at all times when regulated
entertainment is taking place.
These conditions are necessary and proportionate to uphold the four licensing objectives, in particular the prevention of
public nuisance.
ANNEX 4 – AUTHORISED PLAN

Page 42

Premises Licence Summary

PL0312

Licensing Act 2003
THIS LICENCE IS ISSUED BY

Tameside MBC
Licensing Department
Tame Street Depot
Tame Street
Stalybridge
Tameside
SK15 1ST
web: www.tameside.gov.uk
Tel: 0161 342 4262
Part 1 – Premises Details
POSTAL ADDRESS OF PREMISES, OR IF NONE, ORDNANCE SURVEY MAP REFERENCE OR DESCRIPTION

PREMISES

White House

TELEPHONE: 0161 226 1317

ADDRESS

1 Water Street, Stalybridge, Cheshire, SK15 2AG

WHERE THE LICENCE IS TIME LIMITED THE DATES:
Not applicable

LICENSABLE ACTIVITIES AUTHORISED BY THE LICENCE:
E
F
G
I
J

-

Performance Of Live Music;
Playing Of Recorded Music;
Performance Of Dance;
Provision of late night refreshment;
Sale by retail of alcohol;

THE TIMES THE LICENCE AUTHORISES THE CARRYING OUT OF LICENSABLE ACTIVITIES:
Activity (and Area if applicable)

Performance Of Dance
Performance Of Dance
Performance Of Dance
Performance Of Dance
Performance Of Live Music
Performance Of Live Music
Performance Of Live Music
Performance Of Live Music
Provision of late night refreshment
Playing Of Recorded Music
Playing Of Recorded Music
Playing Of Recorded Music
Playing Of Recorded Music
Sale by retail of alcohol
Sale by retail of alcohol
Sale by retail of alcohol
Sale by retail of alcohol
Sale by retail of alcohol
Sale by retail of alcohol

Description

Times

Friday - Saturday
Monday - Thursday
New Years Eve
Sunday
Friday - Saturday
Monday - Thursday
New Years Eve
Sunday
Monday - Saturday
Friday - Saturday
Monday - Thursday
New Years Eve
Sunday
Boxing Day
Friday - Saturday
Monday - Thursday
New Years Eve
Sunday
Christmas Eve

Non-Standard Timings

THE OPENING HOURS OF THE PREMISES:

Page 43

20:00
20:00
20:00
12:00
20:00
20:00
20:00
12:00
23:00
20:00
20:00
20:00
12:00
11:00
11:00
11:00
12:00
11:00

- 02:00
- 00:00
- 02:30
- 00:00
- 02:00
- 00:00
- 02:30
- 00:00
- 23:30
- 02:00
- 00:00
- 02:30
- 00:00
- 02:00
- 02:00
- 00:00
- 00:00
- 02:00

Description

Boxing Day
Friday-Saturday
Monday-Thursday
New Years Eve
Sunday
Christmas Eve

Times

11:00
11:00
11:00

02:30
02:30
01:00

12:00
11:00

01:00
02:30

Where the licence authorises supplies of alcohol whether these are on and /or off supplies:
Alcohol is supplied for consumption both ON and OFF the Premises

Name, (registered) address, telephone number and email (where relevant) of holder of premises licence:
Hydes Brewery Ltd
The Beer Studio, 30 Kansas Avenue, Salford, M50 2GL,

Tel: 0161 226 1317
Email:

Registered number of holder, for example company number, charity number (where applicable):
Hydes Brewery Ltd
The Beer Studio, 30 Kansas Avenue, Salford, M50 2GL,

Business Reg No:

Name of designated premises supervisor where the premises licence authorises the supply of alcohol:
Mrs Gillian Ann Armstrong
The Whitehouse, 1 Water Street, Stalybridge, Cheshire, SK15 2AG

Tel: 0161 338 8277

State whether access to the premises by children is restricted or prohibited:
Access to the premises by children is prohibited

SIGNED ON BEHALF OF THE ISSUING LICENCE AUTHORITY

Sharon Smith, Head of Public Protection
Operations & Neighbourhoods

Page 44

Page 45

Page 46

Page 47

Page 48

Page 49

Page 50

Page 51

Page 52

Page 53

Page 54

Page 55

Page 56

Page 57

Page 58

Page 59

Page 60

Page 61

Page 62

Page 63

Page 64

Page 65

This page is intentionally left blank

APPENDIX
APPENDIX4 3

Page 67

Page 68

Page 69

Page 70

Page 71

Page 72

Page 73

MRT/2

Page 74

MRT/2

Page 75

MRT/2

Page 76

MRT/3

Page 77

MRT/3

Page 78

MRT/3

Page 79

MRT/4

Page 80

MRT/4

Page 81

MRT/4

Page 82

MRT/4

Page 83

MRT/4

Page 84

MRT/4

Page 85

Page 86

Page 87

Page 88

Page 89

Page 90

Page 91

JL/1

Page 92

MRT/5
List of incidents reported to Greater Manchester Police
URN
Category
Created on
Description
000041Incident
23/11/2019 00:20
Two groups of males fighting - 5 males got out
23112019
of a vehicle and started fighting with a group
of 3 other males who had just walked out of
the pub. The group that got out of the vehicle
have now driven off but the other 3 males are
still inside the pub. No injuries. No weapons.
000322Incident
16/11/2019 02:10
Female attacking passerbys following LOG 301
16112019
- female is now becoming aggressive she is
seeing dragons - has taken unknown substance
003427Incident
15/11/2019 23:31
Assault male has been bottled, possible that
15112019
the offender has made off. The barman
making the call who did not witness this and
the victim who was bottled outside is believed
to be inside the pub still but no present at the
time of the call.
CRI/06GG/ Crime
20/09/2019 13:31
Offender enters the beer garden and head to
0005380/1
the kitchen, places metal objects into the
9
microwave and turns it on causing a fire. The
offenders enters store room and smashed the
sound system and take golf clubs which they
use to smash beer bottles in the beer garden.
Offenders are asked to leave and being
swearing are getting aggressive.
CRI/06GG/ Crime
15/09/2019 01:05
The owner of the pub has pushed AP, which
0004963/1
has caused a swollen finger
9
00018215092019

Incident

15/09/2019 00:59

00014901092019

Incident

01/09/2019 00:54

00314305082019

Incident

05/08/2019 20:11

00364902082019

Incident

02/08/2019 23:57

Assault occuring around 0000 today. Informant
was in the pub with his partner when he was
removed by door men, they have pushed
informant. He states he has a cut and swollen
finger but he does not remember how,he does
believe he was assaulted
Possible disturbance, call from A/P and whilst
on the line, states 2 females have been heard
saying "Have you got the knife". Female have
said to A/P "Why don't you go and stab him
and A/P has said "I'm going to stab him in the
neck" states this was towards the door staff"
Fight, Male requested police, no distress,
possible faint shouting in the background.
Male cleared whilst waiting for police to
answer. The inf states that there were 2
females fighting outside the pub and he has
just left. One female has walked off to the
train station and the other is still sat in the
beer garden.
Male requested police. Female heard in the
background sluring her words, possibly crying
but could not clarify as muffled.

Page 93

MRT/5
List of incidents reported to Greater Manchester Police
00048313072019

Incident

13/07/2019 03:16

Assault /fighting at the taxi rank outside the
white house public house. Not known how
many fighting - no weapons mentioned

Page 94

APPENDIX 4
LICENSING ACT 2003 – AS AMENDED
Representation Re Variation Application for a Premises Licence
From:
To:
Date:
Premises:
Date of Application:

The Licensing Section, Tameside Metropolitan Borough Council
The Licensing Section, Tameside Metropolitan Borough Council
27 November 2019
White House, 1 Water Street, Stalybridge, SK15 2AG
31 October 2019

The Licensing Authority, in its capacity as a ‘Responsible Authority’ under the provisions of the
Licensing Act 2003, hereby give notice of our objection to the grant of a variation of a premises
licence in respect of the above premises.
The reason(s) for the objection are as follows:
Since May 2018 to present, the Licensing Department has received 19 complaints regarding
excessive noise coming from the beer garden of the White House Public House. Several visits were
made to the premise by officers to notify the DPS, Gill Armstrong, of these complaints. During these
visits, the DPS assured officers that live music would not be played past midnight and that she would
monitor noise levels. However, complaints from local residents continued to be made to the
Licensing Authority. In addition, the Premise Licence Holders, Hydes Brewery, were also written to
with notification of these complaints.
Following these visits, the Licensing Department continued to receive complaints that the White
House were hosting live bands, which were playing loud music out into the beer garden, causing
disturbance to local residents.
Paul Jefferies, Production and Distribution Director from Hydes Brewery, was invited to the Council
Offices to discuss the issues and a solution moving forward on 4 July 2019. A number of conditions
were presented to Paul Jefferies that the Licensing Department felt would aid the DPS in the
promotion of the Licensing objectives. Further, Mr Jefferies was advised that if the complaints
regarding noise continued to be received consideration would be given to serving a noise abatement
notice. The agreed conditions were to be added to the licence by way of a Minor Variation
application. This application was never received by the Licensing Department.
More recently, the Greater Manchester Police Licensing Officer, Martin Thorley received several
reports of underage patrons congregating in the beer garden of the premise. They are unable to be
challenged due to the easy access to the beer garden from Water Street.
On Friday 15 November 2019 at approximately 23.30pm an incident occurred in which a customer of
the pub was struck over the head with a glass bottle in the beer garden, the DPS has proven very
difficult to deal with when asked to produce CCTV footage of the incident, being obstructive and
confrontational. Accusations about officers targeting the pub and looking for issues were made by
the DPS during visits. On a visit by officers Brad Byrne and James Horton on Thursday 21 November
2019 to view CCTV footage, the DPS became very irate and swore loudly, when asked if she could
not swear at the officers, she proceeded to say “I”ll fucking swear if I want too, I fucking live here”.
Over the past 12-18 months, the management of this premise have failed to promote the Licensing
objectives and the application to increase the licensable area will exacerbate these concerns.
Consequently, we recommend that the application should only be granted subject to the following
being Conditions attached to the grant of the Licence:

Page 95

Proposed Conditions for Whitehouse, Stalybridge
Prevention of noise breakout from premises
1.
No music (amplified or unamplified) shall be played or relayed into the outside drinking
area after 9pm.
2.
To prevent noise nuisance, all windows and doors at the premise must be kept closed
at any time when regulated entertainment, live music (amplified or unamplified), recorded
music or any other type of entertainment (amplified or unamplified) is being performed at the
premise, except to allow people to enter or exit.
3.
While live or recorded music takes place, the licensee or management shall undertake
regular monitoring of noise levels at the nearest noise-sensitive locations. A record shall be
kept of any monitoring, including the date, time and location of monitoring; the name of the
monitor; and any action taken. Records shall be kept for no less than six months and shall be
made available upon request by any Local Authority Officers or Greater Manchester Police.
CCTV
A tamper-proof digital colour CCTV system must be installed and maintained at the premises
to the satisfaction of Greater Manchester Police.
The system must run and record continuously for 24 hours a day, 7 days per week and
recorded footage must be stored for a minimum of 28 days.
The system must provide a clear head and shoulders view to an evidential quality on every
entry/exit route and within any other vulnerable areas as identified by Greater Manchester
Police. The outside drinking area at the rear of the premises will also be covered by CCTV at
all times.
Recorded footage must be provided to a representative of any responsible authority on
request. Such footage must be provided in an immediately viewable format and must include
any software etc. which is required to view the footage. Any discs, portable drives or other
storage media onto which footage is transferred must be provided by the premises and
sufficient stock of such storage media must be kept on the premises at all times.
A member of staff who is trained to operate the system and supply footage must be present
at the premises at all times when licensable activities are taking place.
The Designated Premises Supervisor must ensure that the CCTV system is checked at least
once every week by a suitably trained member of staff. This check must include the
operation of the cameras, the recording facilities, the facilities for providing footage and the
accuracy of the time & date. A written record of these checks must be kept, including a
signature of the person carrying out the check. This written record must be kept on the
premises at all times and made available to a representative of any responsible authority on
request.
Suitable signage informing customers that a CCTV system is in operation must be placed in
prominent positions within the premises, including information on the Data Protection Act
and the Human Rights act.

Page 96

Challenge 25
The premises must operate a “Challenge 25” scheme at the premise in relation to age
verification for alcohol sales and other age-restricted products. Signs and/or posters must
be displayed in prominent positions inside the premise to inform customers of this
condition.
Staff Training
Any staff employed at the premises will receive training by the Designated Premises
Supervisor on first appointment and at least every three months thereafter. Training will
include input on preventing underage sales, sales of alcohol to people who are drunk,
application of the drugs policy and any other relevant matters. A written record will be kept
of all training carried out. This record must be kept on the premises and made available for
inspection by any responsible authority.
Pubwatch
Where such a scheme is in operation, the Designated Premises Supervisor must be an active
member of a local Pubwatch scheme or equivalent.
The Council will continue to actively encourage holders of premises licences and designated
premises supervisors to attend their local Pubwatch groups, and to set up such groups
where they do not currently exist. Members are encouraged to take a “barred from one,
barred from all” approach in dealing with disruptive customers. Pubwatch members will also
be encouraged to subscribe to the Pubwatch online service which allows members to share
photographs and information about barred members whilst remaining compliant with data
protection legislation.
Use of Polycarbonate GlasswareAll glassware used in the premises beer garden must be of
Polycarbonate type. Any drinks served in bottles must be in plastic bottles only. All drinks
from glass bottles to be decanted into polycarbonate containers.
Door Staff
A minimum of 2 SIA registered door supervisors shall be employed at the premises on Friday
and Saturday nights and also New Years Eve from 9.00 pm until 20 minutes after the
premises closes. Door supervisors will wear high visibility armbands.
Incident Book
An incident book (with the pages numbered sequentially) must be kept on the premises and
be made available for inspection by responsible authorities. The incident book must be used
to record the following:
(i) Any incident of violence or disorder on or immediately outside the premises
(ii) Any incident involving controlled drugs (supply/possession/influence) on the premises
(iii) Any other crime or criminal activity on the premises
(iv) Any refusal to serve alcohol to persons who are drunk (On sale and off sale premises
only)
(v) Any refusal to serve alcohol to under 18’s or anyone who appears to be under 18
(vi) Any call for police assistance to the premises
(vii) Any ejection from the premises

Page 97

(viii) Any first aid/other care given to a customer

A copy of this representation has been sent to the applicant.

Signed:

B. Byrne

Name:

Brad Byrne
Regulatory Compliance Officer

Page 98

